

Annual Report 31 December 2024

Contents	Page
Directory*	1
Statement of the Authorised Unit Trust Manager's Responsibilities	2
Certification of the Annual Report by the Authorised Unit Trust Manager	
Statement of the Trustee's Responsibilities in respect of the Scheme and Report of the Trustee to the Unitholders \dots	
Independent Auditor's Report to the Unitholders of the Fund	5
Investment Objective and Policy*	8
nvestment Manager's Report*	8
Portfolio Statement*	
Comparative Tables	
Risk and Reward Profile*	
Statement of Total Return	
Statement of Change in Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders	15
Balance Sheet	
Notes to the Financial Statements	
Distribution Tables	
General Information*	30

^{*}These collectively comprise the Authorised Unit Trust Manager's Report.

Directory

Authorised Unit Trust Manager ('AUTM') & Registrar

Apex Fundrock Limited

Hamilton Centre, Rodney Way, Chelmsford, Essex CM1 3BY

Telephone: 01245 398950 Website: www.fundrock.com

(Authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority)

Customer Service Centre

Hamilton Centre, Rodney Way, Chelmsford, Essex CM1 3BY

Telephone: 0345 026 4282 Fax: 0845 299 1178

Website: polencapital@apexgroup.com

Directors of the Authorised Unit Trust Manager

A.C. Deptford

P.J. Foley-Brickley

S.J. Gunson (appointed 24 May 2024)

I.T. Oddy (retired 7 March 2024)

C. O'Keeffe (retired 6 May 2024)

E. Personne (Non-Executive Director appointed 25 September 2024)

D. Phillips (Non-Executive Director)

L.A. Poynter (appointed 18 June 2024)

J. Thompson (Non-Executive Director)

Investment Manager

Polen Capital UK LLP

1st Floor, 15-18 Austin Friars,

London EC2N 2HE

(Authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority)

Fund Managers*

Damian Bird

Dafydd Lewis

Trustee

Northern Trust Investor Services Limited ('NTISL')
50 Bank Street, Canary Wharf, London E14 5NT
(Authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority)

Independent Auditor

Grant Thornton UK LLP Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants 30 Finsbury Square, London EC2A 1AG

^{*} During the quarter, Mark Williams and Carolyn Chan left Polen Capital.

Statement of the Authorised Unit Trust Manager's Responsibilities

The Collective Investment Schemes sourcebook published by the FCA, ('the COLL Rules') requires the Authorised Unit Trust Manager ('AUTM') to prepare financial statements for each annual accounting period which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Fund and of the net revenue and net gains or losses on the property of the Fund for the year.

In preparing the financial statements the AUTM is responsible for:

- selecting suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
- following UK accounting standards, including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland;
- complying with the disclosure requirements of the Statement of Recommended Practice for Financial Statements of UK Authorised
 Funds issued by the Investment Association ('IA') in May 2014 as amended in June 2017;
- keeping proper accounting records which enable it to demonstrate that the financial statements as prepared comply with the above requirements;
- assessing the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern;
- using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so;
- such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and
- taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and irregularities.

The AUTM is responsible for the management of the Fund in accordance with its Trust Deed, the Prospectus and the COLL Rules.

The AUTM is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Fund and to enable it to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Sourcebook. The AUTM is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Fund and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

In so far as the AUTM is aware:

- there is no relevant audit information of which the Fund's Auditor is unaware; and
- the AUTM has taken steps that it ought to have taken to make itself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Auditor is aware of the information.

Going Concern

Due to the size of the MI Polen Capital Asia Income fund at the year ended 31st December 2024, the ACD has cautiously retained the NAV adjustment. The position will continue to be monitored closely, with a view to reduce or remove any adjustment when the ACD is satisfied the fund has sufficiently grown and shall act in the best interests of investors at all times.

At this stage the ACD wishes to inform investors that, portfolios remain highly liquid and fund can be traded as normal. The fund remain in compliance with their investment objective and policy of the Prospectus and continue to be actively managed.

The Directors are therefore of the opinion that it is appropriate to continue to adopt the going concern basis for at least the next twelve months from the approval of these Financial Statements.

Certification of the Annual Report by the AUTM

This report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Financial Conduct Authority's Collective Investment Schemes Sourcebook ('the COLL Sourcebook') and the Statement of Recommended Practice for Financial Statements of UK Authorised Funds issued by the Investment Association.

A.C. Deptford

P.J. Foley-Brickley

S.C-

S.J. Gunson

L.A. Poynter

Directors

Apex Fundrock Limited

30 April 2025

Statement of the Trustee's Responsibilities in Respect of the Scheme and Report of the Trustee to the Unitholders of the MI Polen Capital Asia Income Fund ('the Fund')

for the year ended 31 December 2024

The Depositary in its capacity as Trustee of the MI Polen Capital Asia Income Fund must ensure that the Fund is managed in accordance with the Financial Conduct Authority's Collective Investment Schemes Sourcebook, the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, as amended, (together "the Regulations"), the Trust Deed and Prospectus (together "the Scheme documents") as detailed below.

The Trustee must in the context of its role act honestly, fairly, professionally, independently and in the interests of the Fund and its investors.

The Trustee is responsible for the safekeeping of all custodial assets and maintaining a record of all other assets of the Fund in accordance with the Regulations.

The Trustee must ensure that:

- the Fund's cash flows are properly monitored and that cash of the Fund is booked into the cash accounts in accordance with the Regulations;
- the sale, issue, repurchase, redemption and cancellation of units are carried out in accordance with the Regulations;
- the value of units of the Fund are calculated in accordance with the Regulations;
- any consideration relating to transactions in the Fund's assets is remitted to the Fund within the usual time limits;
- the Fund's income is applied in accordance with the Regulations; and
- the instructions of the Authorised Fund Manager ("the AFM"), are carried out (unless they conflict with the Regulations).

The Trustee also has a duty to take reasonable care to ensure that Fund is managed in accordance with the Regulations and Scheme documents in relation to the investment and borrowing powers applicable to the Fund.

Having carried out such procedures as we consider necessary to discharge our responsibilities as Trustee of the Fund, it is our opinion, based on the information available to us and the explanations provided, that in all material respects the Fund, acting through the AFM:

- (i) has carried out the issue, sale, redemption and cancellation, and calculation of the price of the Fund's units and the application of the Fund's income in accordance with the Regulations and the Scheme documents of the Fund; and
- (ii) has observed the investment and borrowing powers and restrictions applicable to the Fund.

Northern Trust Investor Services Limited ('NTISL')

UK Trustee and Depositary Services 30 April 2025

Independent Auditor's Report to the Unitholders of MI Polen Capital Asia Income Fund

Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of MI Polen Capital Asia Income Fund ('the Fund') for the year ended 31 December 2024. These financial statements comprise the Statement of Total Return, the Statement of Change in Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders, the Balance Sheet, and Notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, and the Distribution Tables.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland' (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and the Statement of Recommended Practice 'Financial Statements of UK Authorised Funds' issued by the Investment Association in May 2014 as amended in June 2017, the rules of the Collective Investment Schemes Sourcebook and the Fund's Trust deed.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Fund as at 31 December 2024 and of the net revenue and net capital gains/(losses) on the scheme property of the Fund for the year then ended, and
- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, the Statement of Recommended Practice 'Financial Statements of UK Authorised Funds' issued by the Investment Association in May 2014 as amended in June 2017, the rules of the Collective Investment Schemes Sourcebook, and the Fund's Trust deed.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 'Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We are responsible for concluding on the appropriateness of the Authorised Unit Trust Manager's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the auditor's opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

In our evaluation of the Authorised Unit Trust Manager's conclusions, we considered the inherent risks associated with the Fund's business model including effects arising from macro-economic uncertainties such as the Geopolitical Uncertainties and Cost of Living Crisis, we assessed and challenged the reasonableness of estimates made by the Authorised Unit Trust Manager and the related disclosures and analysed how those risks might affect the Fund's financial resources or ability to continue operations over the going concern period.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Authorised Unit Trust Manager's use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

The responsibilities of the Authorised Unit Trust Manager with respect to going concern are described in the 'Responsibilities of the Authorised Unit Trust Manager's section of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Authorised Unit Trust Manager is responsible for the other information contained within the annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Independent Auditor's Report to the Unitholders of MI Polen Capital Asia Income Fund

continued

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Collective Investment Schemes Sourcebook

In our opinion:

- we have been given all the information and explanations, which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, are necessary for the purposes of our audit, and
- the information given in the Authorised Unit Trust Manager's Report (which comprises; on page 1, Directory; the Investment Objective and Policy, the Investment Manager's Report, the Portfolio Statement, the Risk and Reward Profile; and on page 30, the General Information) is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Collective Investment Schemes Sourcebook requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- proper accounting records for the Fund have not been kept, or
- the financial statements are not in agreement with those accounting records.

Responsibilities of the Authorised Unit Trust Manager

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Authorised Unit Trust Manager's Responsibilities, the Authorised Unit Trust Manager is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Authorised Unit Trust Manager determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Authorised Unit Trust Manager is responsible for assessing the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Authorised Unit Trust Manager either intends to wind up the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that material misstatements in the financial statements may not be detected, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with ISAs (UK).

Independent Auditor's Report to the Unitholders of MI Polen Capital Asia Income Fund

continued

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below:

- We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks applicable to the Fund and the industry in which it operates. We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the financial statements from our sector experience and through discussion with management. We determined that the most significant laws and regulations were the Collective Investment Schemes Sourcebook, the Investment Association Statement of Recommended Practice ('SORP') 'Financial Statements of UK Authorised Funds' and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland'.
- We enquired of the Authorised Unit Trust Manager and management to obtain an understanding of how the Fund is complying with those legal and regulatory frameworks and whether there were any instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations and whether they had any knowledge of actual or suspected fraud. We corroborated the results of our enquiries through our review of the breaches register.
- In assessing the potential risks of material misstatement, we obtained an understanding of: the Fund's operations, including the nature of its revenue sources, and of its objective to understand the classes of transactions, account balances, expected financial statement disclosures and business risks that may result in risks of material misstatement and the Fund's control environment, including the policies and procedures implemented to mitigate risks of fraud or non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.
- We assessed the susceptibility of the Fund's financial statements to material misstatement, including how fraud might occur by evaluating management's incentives and opportunities for manipulation of the financial statements. This included an evaluation of the risk of management override of controls. Audit procedures performed by the engagement team in connection with the risks identified included:
 - evaluation of the design and implementation of controls that management has put in place to prevent and detect fraud;
 - testing journal entries, including manual journal entries processed at the year end for financial statements preparation; and
 - challenging the assumptions and judgements made by management in its significant accounting estimates.
- These audit procedures were designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements were free from fraud or error. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error and detecting irregularities that result from fraud is inherently more difficult than detecting those that result from error, as fraud may involve collusion, deliberate concealment, forgery or intentional misrepresentations. Also, the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we would become aware of it.
- The engagement partner's assessment of the appropriateness of the collective competence and capabilities of the engagement team included consideration of the engagement team's:
 - understanding of, and practical experience with, audit engagements of a similar nature and complexity, through appropriate training and participation;
 - knowledge of the industry in which the Fund operates; and
 - understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks applicable to the Fund.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Fund's Unitholders, as a body, in accordance with regulation 67(2) of the Open-Ended Investment Companies Regulations 2001, and with Rule 4.5.12 of the Collective Investment Schemes Sourcebook. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Fund's Unitholders those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Fund and the Unitholders as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Grant Thornton UK LLP

Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants London, United Kingdom 30 April 2025 Grant Thornton Uk 11P

Investment Objective and Policy

Investment Objective

The Fund aims to deliver a high level of income with potential for capital growth over the long term (5 years or more).

The Fund aims to deliver an annual net target yield of at least 110% of the yield of the MSCI All Countries Asia Pacific Excluding Japan Index.

Investment Policy

The Fund is actively managed and will invest in companies which are incorporated, domiciled, listed or conduct significant business in the Asia Pacific region (excluding Japan).

The Fund will typically invest at least 90% (minimum 80%) in equities or equity related derivatives, but may also invest in collective investment schemes (up to 10% of Fund assets) which may be collective investment schemes managed by the Manager or by third party managers, corporate debt securities, other transferable securities, money market instruments, warrants, cash and deposits. Exposure to the companies will typically be direct but the Fund may also have limited indirect exposure (through derivatives).

The Fund is permitted to use derivatives for the purposes of Efficient Portfolio Management and for investment purposes. Please refer to the Derivatives sections in Appendix B of the Prospectus for further details.

Investment Manager's Report

for the year ended 31 December 2024

Asia equities, as measured by the MSCI Asia Pacific ex-Japan Index, were up 12.07% over the period in GBP terms. This was driven by strong performance in Taiwan, almost entirely driven by the semiconductor industry, China, which rose close to 25% over the year boosted by a flurry of policy announcements in September, and India, which has seen strong economic tailwinds and continued domestic inflows into equities. Conversely Korea was the notable laggard, hampered by weaker performance in some of the largest constituents, while political instability fuelled further outflows. At a sector level, Communication Services, Information Technology and Financials were the strongest performers, while Materials and Consumer Staples sectors were weakest. Stylistically, the Growth Index fared much better than the Value Index and large caps outperformed smaller caps on average.

Over the year the Fund saw positive absolute returns of 9.80%¹ (I Income daily Net Asset Value with dividends reinvested) net of fees, however underperformed the MSCI Asia Pacific ex Japan Index which returned 12.07% and the MSCI AC Asia ex Japan Index which returned 13.91%.

Absolute performance was strongest in Taiwan and China and Information Technology and Industrials. The Funds semiconductor related names in Taiwan; Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing, Lotes and ASE Technology were key contributors to these positive returns, while in China it was broader and included CNOOC, an oil & gas company, Sieyuan Electric, a maker of electrical grid infrastructure equipment, and ICBC, a leading bank. Conversely, the Funds Korean holdings, notably Samsung and LG Chem, were a drag on overall returns. New Zealand and Thailand were also laggards.

Relative underperformance versus the MSCI Asia Pacific ex-Japan Index was mostly due to weak security selection in Health Care and Consumer Discretionary sectors and outweighed stronger selection in the Industrials and Energy sector. Sector allocation, a fallout of the Funds bottom-up process, contributed positively to relative returns, primarily due to the Funds underweight to Materials and overweight to Information Technology. At a country level, security selection was strongest in Hong Kong and South Korea but was outweighed by weaker selection in Taiwan and China. Similarly, country allocation was also positive, mostly due to the Funds overweight to Taiwan.

At an individual company level the largest contributors to absolute performance were Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing, Lotes and CNOOC, while on a relative basis it was Lotes, CNOOC and KB Financial ADR.

Lotes, a Taiwanese designer and manufacturer of precision electronic interconnect components and hardware continued to benefit from growing demand related to Artificial Intelligence ('Al') spend. As liquid cooling becomes more important for Al servers, Lotes stands to benefit as it develops quick disconnects, a type of coupling (valve fitting) found in liquid cooling that allows for a rapid and tool-free open and close of fluid lines with a simple push or pull action. While Lotes is a small company that serves a specific niche, Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing, the largest company in Asia, also continues to benefit from Al demand. The world's biggest chipmaker, has benefited from soaring demand for server Al processors. In the third quarter the company saw net revenues grow 36% year-on-year. Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing is the largest holding in the Fund and has contributed meaningfully to absolute returns. However, it has breached a 10% position in the index, so despite the strong performance, it has detracted from relative returns due to the underweight position relative to the Funds benchmarks. CNOOC, one of the largest oil companies in China, has been supported by a buoyant oil price and lower costs. The company reported good results through the period with revenues and net profit both ahead of consensus estimates.

Investment Manager's Report

continued

The largest individual detractors from absolute performance were Samsung Electronics, LG Chem and CSPC Pharmaceutical. While on a relative basis it was LG Chem, CSPC Pharmaceutical and WuXi AppTec.

Samsung Electronics, Korea's largest company and one of the largest positions in the benchmark, was weak after a disappointing period its semiconductor business, driven by reduced demand in legacy memory and foundry segments, as well as negative investor sentiment around Korea. LG Chem, largest chemical company in Korea, has seen a slowdown in sales and dip in profitability. The company's petrochemical business appears to be facing headwinds from a pullback in consumer plastic demand as competition in the segment grows. While Hong Kong-listed CSPC Pharmaceutical was down as the company made a significant transfer of assets to a sister company, to at best a marginal detriment to minority shareholders in the Hong Kong listed entity.

Turnover was higher than normal, particularly over the final quarter of the year as the Fund made some changes to the portfolio that the team believe materially upgraded the quality of companies held. New holdings include the leading technology consulting business in India, Infosys, Tencent Music Entertainment, the Chinese equivalent to Spotify, and one of the leading Indonesian banks, Bank Mandiri. Other new positions included Las Vegas Sands, Hefei Meyer Optoelectronics, E Ink, Tencent Holdings, Yum, NetEase, Genting Singapore, Bank Central and Shenzhen Inovance Technology. To fund these new positions we sold out of a number of names. These included HCL Technologies, Sieyuan Electric, Milkyway, Wiwynn, LG Chem, TCC Group, Techtronic Industries, Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, Bank Of China, Wuxi Apptec, Unimicron Technology, Sands China, Minth Group and Horizon Construction Development.

Looking forward, while external factors have been the main risks in Asia rather than any significant structural internal risks in our view, this is likely to be the case in the coming periods as the market continues to grapple with factors such as high but decreasing global interest rates, stubborn inflation and the prospect of new trade tariffs from the US. Growth should continue to be stronger than developed markets and in our view valuations of what we believe to be high-quality companies, remain highly attractive and at a material discount to history and the broader Emerging Market universe. Additionally, developments like those seen in China recently could provide some broader momentum for the asset class.

We continue to stay focused on the long-term value propositions, competitive advantages, growth opportunities, and potential earnings power of well-managed companies backed by strong free cashflows and sustainable dividend companies. This allows us to think and act like owners. The markets continue to have a lot of uncertainty and be influenced by macroeconomic issues, but we believe that quality companies can weather the uncertainty and come out the other side stronger.

¹Source for MI Somerset Asia Income Fund figures: Apex Fundrock Ltd. Figures for the Source for Index performance figures: MSCI

Portfolio Statement

as at 31 December 2024

		Market value	% of total net assets
Holding	Security	£	2024
	Australia 5.88% (6.06%)		
124,912	Dexus REIT	411,628	1.38
212,494	Downer EDI	550,715	1.84
119,970	Transurban	795,440	2.66
		1,757,783	5.88
	China 29.13% (24.63%)		
133,127	ANTA Sports Products	1,065,668	3.57
973,247	China Communications Services	456,336	1.53
864,059	CNOOC	1,698,745	5.69
1,486,100	CSPC Pharmaceutical	727,364	2.43
37,177	Gudeng Precision	441,233	1.48
595,352	Jiangsu Expressway	523,404	1.75
42,319	NetEase	602,238	2.02
45,000	Shenzhen Inovance Technology	287,941	0.96
15,088	Tencent Holdings	646,941	2.17
94,335	Tencent Music Entertainment	852,737	2.85
630,829	Weichai Power	770,593	2.58
16,336	Yum	628,560	2.10
		8,701,760	29.13
	Hong Kong 15.00% (11.38%)		
129,857	AIA Group	751,746	2.52
77,162	China Mobile	606,566	2.03
472,095	China State Construction International	590,283	1.97
1,211,540	Far East Horizon	703,855	2.36
26,800	Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing	812,380	2.72
477,393	SITC International	1,016,116	3.40
		4,480,946	15.00
	India 9.87% (5.82%)		
474,510	Ganges Securities	768,131	2.57
46,369	HDFC Bank	765,473	2.56
63,895	Infosys	1,118,548	3.74
88,506	Mindspace Business Parks REIT	297,788	1.00
		2,949,940	9.87
	Indonesia 4.62% (0.00%)		
1,198,480	Bank Central	572,480	1.91
2,875,794	Bank Mandiri	809,303	2.71
2,0,3,,31	Sankindhan	1,381,783	4.62
			4.02
	Macau 0.00% (1.78%)		
253,225	New Zealand 1.11% (1.40%) Spark New Zealand	331,845	1.11
	Philippines 1.43% (0.00%)		
80,560	International Container Terminal Services	427,518	1.43
	Singapore 3.44% (3.21%)		
1,322,700	Genting Singapore	593,122	1.98
1,365,152	Lendlease Global Commercial REIT	436,112	1.46
		1,029,234	3.44

Portfolio Statement

continued

Holding	Security	Market value £	% of total net assets 2024
Holding		2	2024
28,451	South Korea 2.28% (10.23%) Samsung Electronics Preference Shares	681,292	2.28
	Taiwan 13.27% (26.31%)		
111,755	ASE Technology	441,211	1.48
169,271	Lite-On Technology	410,459	1.37
15,054	Lotes	717,238	2.40
163,512	Merry Electronics	430,366	1.44
75,012	Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing	1,965,187	6.58
		3,964,461	13.27
	Thailand 4.06% (5.81%)		
1,572,090	Digital Telecoms Fund	305,604	1.02
177,010	Kasikornbank	638,741	2.14
410,636	Thai Oil	267,677	0.90
		1,212,022	4.06
	United States 7.27% (0.00%)		
109,163	E Ink	726,278	2.43
14,529	KB Financial ADR	657,714	2.20
19,237	Las Vegas Sands	787,881	2.64
		2,171,873.00	7.27
	Investment assets	29,090,457	97.36
	Net other assets	789,667	2.64
	Net assets	29,880,124	100.00

All investments are ordinary shares or stock units on a regulated securities market unless otherwise stated. The percentages in brackets show the equivalent % holdings as at 31.12.23.

Comparative Tables

Change in net assets per unit

A Income	31.12.24 p	31.12.23 p	31.12.22 p
Opening net asset value per unit	122.63	121.05	136.17
Return before operating charges^	12.77	8.10	-7.40
Operating charges	-1.90	-1.54	-1.62
Return after operating charges^	10.87	6.56	-9.02
Distributions	-4.16	-4.98	-6.10
Closing net asset value per unit	129.34	122.63	121.05
^After direct transaction costs of	-0.34	-0.07	-0.10
Performance			
Return after charges	8.86%	5.42%	-6.63%
Other information			
Closing net asset value	£32,790	£31,090	£53,246
Closing number of units	25,352	25,352	43,988
Operating charges	1.47%	1.25%	1.27%
Direct transaction costs	0.26%	0.06%	0.08%
Prices			
Highest unit price	138.07	131.40	141.05
Lowest unit price	115.41	116.38	109.27

Income	31.12.24 p	31.12.23 p	31.12.22 p
Opening net asset value per unit	133.78	129.65	145.14
Return before operating charges^	15.03	10.67	-7.60
Operating charges	-1.70	-1.33	-1.39
Return after operating charges^	13.33	9.34	-8.99
Distributions	-5.07	-5.21	-6.50
Closing net asset value per unit	142.04	133.78	129.65
^After direct transaction costs of	-0.36	-0.08	-0.11
Performance			
Return after charges	6.17%	7.21%	-6.20%
Other information			
Closing net asset value	£29,672,242	£80,497,292	£88,828,845
Closing number of units	20,890,121	60,173,195	68,514,541
Operating charges	1.22%	1.00%	1.02%
Direct transaction costs	0.26%	0.06%	0.08%
Prices			
Highest unit price	148.85	140.79	150.35
Lowest unit price	124.21	125.15	116.94

Comparative Tables

continued

Change in net assets per unit

I Accumulation	31.12.24 p	31.12.23 p	31.12.22 p
Opening net asset value per unit	97.46	91.45	97.50
Return before operating charges^	10.00	6.95	-5.10
Operating charges	-1.20	-0.94	-0.95
Return after operating charges^	8.80	6.01	-6.05
Distributions	-3.30	-3.81	-4.44
Retained distributions on accumulation units	3.30	3.81	4.44
Closing net asset value per unit	106.26	97.46	91.45
^After direct transaction costs of	-0.27	-0.06	-0.07
Performance			
Return after charges	9.03%	6.57%	-6.21%
Other information			
Closing net asset value	£26,565	£24,364	£68,788
Closing number of units	25,000	25,000	75,221
Operating charges	1.17%	1.00%	1.02%
Direct transaction costs	0.26%	0.06%	0.08%
Prices			
Highest unit price	112.04	99.10	101.22
Lowest unit price	90.30	90.61	82.14

R Income	31.12.24 p	31.12.23 p	31.12.22 p
Opening net asset value per unit	119.69	115.24	129.34
Return before operating charges^	12.51	10.39	-7.06
Operating charges	-1.45	-1.18	-1.24
Return after operating charges^	11.06	9.21	-8.30
Distributions	-4.00	-4.76	-5.80
Closing net asset value per unit	126.75	119.69	115.24
^After direct transaction costs of	-0.32	-0.07	-0.10
Performance			
Return after charges	9.24%	8.00%	-6.42%
Other information			
Closing net asset value	£148,527	£176,933	£865,715
Closing number of units	117,181	147,821	751,253
Operating charges	1.17%	1.00%	1.02%
Direct transaction costs	0.26%	0.06%	0.08%
Prices			
Highest unit price	132.95	125.12	133.89
Lowest unit price	110.86	111.63	103.97

Operating charges include indirect costs incurred in the maintenance and running of the Fund, as disclosed (but not limited to) the detailed expenses within the Statement of Total Return. The figures used within this table have been calculated against the average Net Asset Value for the accounting year.

The return after charges is calculated as the closing Net Asset Value per unit plus the distributions on income units minus the opening Net Asset Value per unit as a % of the opening Net Asset Value per unit. The basis of valuation of investments used to calculate Net Asset Value per unit is described in notes to the Financial Statements 1h) and complies with requirements of the current Statement of Recommended Practice for UK Authorised Funds. This differs from the basis used to calculate daily published dual prices, in which listed investments are valued at 12:00 bid and offer prices.

Direct transaction costs include fees, commissions, transfer taxes and duties in the purchasing and selling of investments, which are offset (where applicable) against any dilution levies charged within the accounting year. The figures used within the table have been calculated against the average Net Asset Value for the accounting year.

Risk and Reward Profile

The risk and reward indicator table demonstrates where the Fund ranks in terms of its potential risk and reward. The higher the rank the greater the potential reward but the greater the risk of losing money. It is based on past data, may change over time and may not be a reliable indication of the future risk profile of the Fund. The shaded area in the table below shows the Fund's ranking on the risk and reward indicator.



This Fund is ranked at 6 because funds of this type have experienced high rises and falls in value in the past. During the year under review the category changed from a 5 to a 6. This is due to the price volatility of the Fund. Please note that even the lowest risk class can lose you money and that extreme market circumstances can mean you suffer severe losses in all cases. The indicator does not take into account the following risks of investing in this Fund:

- Investing overseas can bring additional returns and spread risk to different markets. There are risks, however, that changes in currency exchange rates may cause the value of your investment to decrease or increase.
- The level of targeted income is not guaranteed and may not be achieved.
- This Fund can use derivatives in order to meet its investment objectives or to protect from price and currency movement. This may result in losses or gains that are greater than the original amount invested.
- The Fund's charges are deducted from the capital of the Fund. This may allow more income to be paid but it may also restrict capital growth and may result in capital erosion.
- Emerging markets or less developed countries may face more political, economic or structural challenges than developed countries.
 This means your money is at greater risk.
- In difficult market conditions, the value of some investments may be less predictable than normal and the Fund may not be able to buy and sell these investments at the best time or at a fair price. This could affect the Fund's performance, potentially reducing your returns.
- For further risk information please see the Prospectus.

Risk warning

An investment in a Unit Trust should be regarded as a medium to long-term investment. Investors should be aware that the price of units and the revenue from them can fall as well as rise and investors may not receive back the full amount invested. Past performance is not a guide to future performance. Investments denominated in currencies other than the base currency are subject to fluctuation in exchange rates, which can be favourable or unfavourable.

Statement of Total Return

for the year ended 31 December 2024

		31.12.24		31.12.23
Note	£	£	£	£
2		5,545,775		3,424,774
3	3,083,360		3,691,975	
4	(856,990)		(919,787)	
4	(1,383)		(105)	
	2,224,987		2,772,083	
5	(545,007)		(227,315)	
		1,679,980		2,544,768
		7,225,755		5,969,542
6		(2,700,633)		(3,318,520)
		4,525,122		2,651,022
	2 3 4 4 5	2 3 3,083,360 4 (856,990) 4 (1,383) 2,224,987 5 (545,007)	Note £ £ 2 5,545,775 3 3,083,360 4 (856,990) 4 (1,383) 2,224,987 5 (545,007) 1,679,980 7,225,755 6 (2,700,633)	Note £ £ £ 2 5,545,775 3,691,975 3 3,083,360 3,691,975 4 (856,990) (919,787) 4 (1,383) (105) 2,224,987 2,772,083 5 (545,007) (227,315) 7,225,755 6 (2,700,633)

Statement of Change in Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders

for the year ended 31 December 2024

Opening net assets attributable to Unitholders	£	31.12.24 £ 80,729,679	£	31.12.23 £ 89,816,594
Amounts receivable on issue of units	9,360,019		15,690,427	
Less: Amounts payable on cancellation of units	(64,735,083)		(27,430,251)	
		(55,375,064)		(11,739,824)
Change in net assets attributable to Unitholders from investment activities				
(see Statement of Total Return above)		4,525,122		2,651,022
Retained distributions on accumulation units		387		1,887
Closing net assets attributable to Unitholders		29,880,124		80,729,679

The notes on pages 17 to 27 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Balance Sheet

as at 31 December 2024

	Note	£	31.12.24 £	£	31.12.23 £
ASSETS	Note		L		
Fixed Assets					
Investments			29,090,457		78,012,760
Current Assets					
Debtors	7	124,972		346,705	
Cash and bank balances	9	45,625,514		38,818,197	
Total current assets			45,750,486		39,164,902
Total assets			74,840,943		117,177,662
LIABILITIES					
Creditors					
Bank overdrafts	9	(44,618,112)		(35,816,043)	
Distribution payable		(125,424)		(308,787)	
Other creditors	8	(217,283)		(323,153)	
Total creditors			(44,960,819)		(36,447,983)
Total liabilities			(44,960,819)		(36,447,983)
Net assets attributable to Unitholders			29,880,124		80,729,679

The notes on pages 17 to 27 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.



Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2024

1. Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis, as modified by the revaluation of investments and in accordance with FRS 102 and the Statement of Recommended Practice ('SORP') for Financial Statements of UK Authorised Funds issued by the Investment Association ('IA') in May 2014 as amended in June 2017.

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis.

Apex Fundrock Limited as the Authorised Unit Trust Manager ('the AUTM') of the Fund wishes to inform investors of a recent announcement by the Investment Manager to the Fund, Somerset Capital Management LLP ('Somerset').

On 7 December 2023, Somerset announced they will be initiating a closure of their business.

Following discussions with a number of parties to secure the best outcome for investors, and subject to the completion of satisfactory detailed due diligence, Apex Fundrock Ltd has appointed Polen Capital UK LLP as the delegated investment manager for the Fund with effect from 1 February 2024. Polen Capital UK LLP is an FCA authorised investment manager and a subsidiary of Polen Capital.

Polen Capital is a global investment management firm with approaching \$50bn in Assets under Management. Polen Capital has long-established emerging market and Asian investment expertise consistent with the investment objectives of the Fund.

As part of this appointment, a team of investment managers from Somerset will be joining Polen Capital's investment team based in London and Asia. This will ensure continuity of management of the assets with no change in process or Fund objectives. Polen Capital has also committed to undertake the promotion and distribution of the Fund with a view to ensuring their future growth and longevity.

At this stage we wish to inform investors that:

The Funds' portfolio remains highly liquid and the Fund can be traded as normal;

The Fund remains in compliance with their investment objective and policy of the Prospectus and continues to be actively managed;

The AUTM is monitoring the Fund and investor activity closely and shall act in the best interests of investors at all times.

The Authorised Status and head office of the Fund can be found within the general information starting on page 30.

The Certification of the Annual Report by the AUTM can be found on page 2.

(b) Recognition of revenue

Revenue is included in the Statement of Total Return on the following basis:

Dividends on quoted equities and preference shares are recognised when the securities are quoted ex-dividend.

Interest on bank and short-term deposits is recognised on an earned basis.

All revenue includes withholding taxes but excludes irrecoverable tax credits.

(c) Treatment of stock and special dividends

The ordinary element of stocks received in lieu of cash dividends is credited to capital in the first instance followed by a transfer to revenue of the cash equivalent being offered and this forms part of the distributable revenue.

Special dividends are reviewed on a case by case basis in determining whether the dividend is to be treated as revenue or capital. Amounts recognised as revenue will form part of the distributable revenue. The tax accounting treatment follows the treatment of the principal amount.

(d) Treatment of expenses

All expenses are charged against capital for the year on an accruals basis.

(e) Allocation of revenue and expenses to multiple unit classes

With the exception of the Investment Manager's fee which is directly attributable to individual unit classes, all revenue and expenses are apportioned to the Fund's unit classes pro-rata to the value of the net assets of the relevant unit class on the day that the revenue or expense is recognised.

Notes to the Financial Statements

continued

1. Accounting Policies (continued)

(f) Taxation

Corporation tax is provided at 20% on revenue, after deduction of expenses.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on all timing differences arising on the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes, calculated at the rate at which it is anticipated the timing differences will reverse. Deferred tax assets are recognised only when, on the basis of available evidence, it is more likely than not that there will be taxable profits in the future against which the deferred tax asset can be offset.

(g) Distribution policy

The net revenue after taxation as disclosed in the financial statements, after adjustment for items of a capital nature, is distributable to Unitholders as Dividend distributions. Any revenue deficit is funded from capital.

At the year end, there were no items of a capital nature.

Interim distributions may be made at the AUTM's discretion and the balance of revenue is distributed in accordance with the regulations.

For the purpose of enhancing revenue entitlement, all expenses (including those relating to the purchase and sale of investments) are allocated to capital for the year on an accruals basis. This will reduce the capital growth of the Fund.

Distributions not claimed within a six year period will be forfeited and added back to the capital of the Fund.

(h) Basis of valuation of investments

Listed investments are valued at close of business bid prices on the last business day of the accounting year excluding any accrued interest in the case of fixed and floating rate interest securities.

Unlisted or suspended investments are valued by the AUTM taking into account where appropriate, latest dealing prices, valuations from reliable sources, financial performance and other relevant factors.

Derivative instruments are valued at the cost of closing out the contract at the balance sheet date.

The fair value of open forward foreign currency contracts is calculated with reference to the changes in the spot rate, changes in interest rate differential and the reduced term left to maturity.

Market value is defined by the SORP as fair value, which generally is the bid value of each security.

Categorisation within the hierarchy has been determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement of the relevant asset as follows:

- Level 1 Unadjusted quoted price in an active market for an identical instrument.
- Level 2 Valuation techniques using observable inputs other than quoted prices within level 1.
- Level 3 Valuation techniques using unobservable inputs.

(i) Exchange rates

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in sterling at the rate ruling at the date of the transactions. Assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currencies at the end of the accounting year are translated into sterling at the closing exchange rates ruling on that date.

(j) Dilution levy

The AUTM may require a dilution levy on the purchase and redemption of units if, in its opinion, the existing Unitholders (for purchases) or remaining Unitholders (for redemptions) might otherwise be adversely affected. For example, the dilution levy may be charged in the following circumstances: where the scheme property is in continual decline; on a Fund experiencing large levels of net sales relative to its size; on 'large deals' (typically being a purchase of redemption of Units to a size exceeding 5% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund); in any case where the AUTM is of the opinion that the interests of remaining Unitholders require the imposition of a dilution levy.

Notes to the Financial Statements

continued

2. Net Capital Gains	31.12.24 £	31.12.23 £
Non-derivative securities	5,590,508	3,640,222
Currency losses	(36,947)	(202,875)
Currency Contracts	3,744	-
Transaction charges	(11,530)	(12,573)
Net capital gains	5,545,775	3,424,774
3.Revenue	31.12.24 £	31.12.23 £
UK dividends: Ordinary	195,139	_
Overseas dividends	2,498,079	2,953,332
Property income distributions	240,639	557,511
Taxable overseas dividends	113,693	114,699
Bank interest	35,810	66,433
Total revenue	3,083,360	3,691,975
4. Expenses	31.12.24 £	31.12.23 £
Payable to the Authorised Unit Trust Manager ('AUTM'), associates of the AUTM and agents of either of them:		
AUTM's fee	99,775	68,347
AUTM's fee Registration fees	99,775 63,123	68,347 70,735
	63,123	70,735
Registration fees Payable to the Investment Manager, associates of the Investment Manager and agents of	63,123	70,735
Registration fees Payable to the Investment Manager, associates of the Investment Manager and agents of either of them:	63,123 162,898	70,735 139,082
Registration fees Payable to the Investment Manager, associates of the Investment Manager and agents of either of them: Investment Manager's fee	63,123 162,898	70,735 139,082
Registration fees Payable to the Investment Manager, associates of the Investment Manager and agents of either of them: Investment Manager's fee Payable to the Trustee, associates of the Trustee and agents of either of them:	63,123 162,898 550,259	70,735 139,082 638,565
Registration fees Payable to the Investment Manager, associates of the Investment Manager and agents of either of them: Investment Manager's fee Payable to the Trustee, associates of the Trustee and agents of either of them: Trustee's fee (including VAT)	63,123 162,898 550,259	70,735 139,082 638,565 20,433
Registration fees Payable to the Investment Manager, associates of the Investment Manager and agents of either of them: Investment Manager's fee Payable to the Trustee, associates of the Trustee and agents of either of them: Trustee's fee (including VAT)	63,123 162,898 550,259 18,240 18,814	70,735 139,082 638,565 20,433 19,705
Registration fees Payable to the Investment Manager, associates of the Investment Manager and agents of either of them: Investment Manager's fee Payable to the Trustee, associates of the Trustee and agents of either of them: Trustee's fee (including VAT) Safe custody and other bank charges Auditor's remuneration*: Audit fee	63,123 162,898 550,259 18,240 18,814	70,735 139,082 638,565 20,433 19,705
Registration fees Payable to the Investment Manager, associates of the Investment Manager and agents of either of them: Investment Manager's fee Payable to the Trustee, associates of the Trustee and agents of either of them: Trustee's fee (including VAT) Safe custody and other bank charges Auditor's remuneration*:	63,123 162,898 550,259 18,240 18,814 37,054	70,735 139,082 638,565 20,433 19,705 40,138

Notes to the Financial Statements

continued

4. Expenses (continued)	31.12.24 £	31.12.23 £
Other expenses:		
Legal fees	12,986	7,777
Printing costs	5,575	6,006
Other costs	75,000	75,000
	93,561	88,783
Expenses	856,990	919,787
Interest payable and similar charges	1,383	105
Total	858,373	919,892
*Included within the auditor's remuneration is irrecoverable VAT of £2,203 (2023: £2,203)		
5. Taxation	31.12.24	31.12.23
	£	£
(a) Analysis of charge in the year:		
Capital gains tax on Indian trades	241,373	1,688
Overseas tax	303,634	225,627
Total tax charge (note 5b)	545,007	227,315
(b) Factors affecting taxation charge for the year:		
Net revenue before taxation	2,224,987	2,772,083
Corporation tax at 20%	444,997	554,417
Effects of:		
UK dividends	(39,028)	_
Capital gains tax on Indian trades	241,373	1,688
Movement in surplus management expenses	93,647	36,250
Overseas tax expensed	303,634	225,627
Non-taxable overseas earnings	(499,616)	(590,667)
Total tax charge (note 5a)	545,007	227,315

(c) Deferred tax

At the year end there is a potential deferred tax asset of £766,463 (2023: £672,817) in relation to surplus management expenses of £3,832,318 (2023: £3,364,086). It is unlikely that the Fund will generate sufficient taxable profits in the future to utilise these expenses and therefore no deferred tax asset has been recognised in the year.

Notes to the Financial Statements

continued

6. Distributions

The distributions take account of revenue received on the issue of units and revenue deducted on the cancellation of units, and comprise:

comprise.		31.12.24 £	31.12.23 £
First interim distribution	31.03.24	432,867	349,390
Second interim distribution	30.06.24	749,621	1,309,436
Third interim distribution	30.09.24	1,239,511	1,307,013
Final distribution	31.12.24	124,987	308,899
		2,546,986	3,274,738
Revenue deducted on cancellation of units		194,987	122,979
Revenue received on issue of units		(41,340)	(79,197)
Distributions		2,700,633	3,318,520
Reconciliation of net revenue after taxation to net distribution	ons:		
Net revenue after taxation per Statement of Total Return		1,679,980	2,544,768
Expenses allocated to capital		856,990	919,787
Relief on expenses allocated to capital		(77,752)	(147,708)
Capital gains tax on Indian trades		241,373	1,688
Undistributed revenue brought forward		50	35
Undistributed revenue carried forward		(8)	(50)
Distributions		2,700,633	3,318,520
7 Dahtara		24 42 24	24 42 22
7. Debtors		31.12.24 £	31.12.23 £
Amounts receivable on issues		454	158,470
Accrued income:			
Dividends receivable		41,935	105,776
Overseas tax recoverable		81,328	81,174
Prepaid expenses:			
Legal fees		1,255	1,285
Total debtors		124,972	346,705

Notes to the Financial Statements

continued

8. Other Creditors	31.12.24 £	31.12.23 £
Amounts payable on cancellations	67,425	159,069
Currency deals outstanding	-	202
Accrued expenses:		
Amounts payable to the Authorised Unit Trust Manager ('AUTM'), associates of the AUTM and agents of either of them:	5	
AUTM's fee	8,103	5,607
Registration fees	4,415	5,409
	12,518	11,016
Amounts payable to the Investment Manager, associates of the Investment Manager and agents of either of them:		
Investment Manager's fee	25,160	50,774
Amounts payable to the Trustee, associates of the Trustee and agents of either of them:		
Trustee's fee (including VAT)	5,791	4,941
Safe custody and other bank charges	6,202	4,734
	11,993	9,675
Auditor's remuneration*:		
Audit fee	10,870	10,870
Tax compliance services	3,523	2,348
	14,393	13,218
Other accrued expenses:		
Printing costs	2,424	2,511
Other costs	75,000	75,000
	77,424	77,511
Taxation payable:		<u> </u>
Capital gains tax on Indian trades	8,370	1,688
cup tan game tan on material acces		.,,,,,
Total other creditors	217,283	323,153
*Included within the auditors remuneration is irrecoverable VAT of £2,399 (2023: £2,203)		
9. Cash and Bank Balances	31.12.24	31.12.23
	£	£
Cash and bank balances Overdraft positions	45,625,514 (44,618,112)	38,818,197 (35,816,043)
Cash and bank balances	1,007,402	3,002,154

Notes to the Financial Statements

continued

10. Related Party Transactions

Apex Fundrock Limited ('AFL') is regarded as a related party by virtue of having the ability to act in respect of the operations of the Fund in its capacity as the Authorised Unit Trust Manager ('AUTM').

AUTM and other fees payable to AFL are disclosed in note 4 and amounts due at the year end are shown in note 8.

Fees payable to Polen Capital Management LLP ('the Investment Manager') are disclosed in note 4 and amounts due at the year end are shown in note 8.

Amounts receivable on issue and payable on cancellation of units and dilution levy are disclosed in the Statement of Change in Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders and in note 6, amounts due at the year end are shown in notes 7 and 8.

11. Contingent Liabilities and Outstanding Commitments

There were no contingent liabilities or outstanding commitments at the balance sheet date (2023: none).

12. Risk Management Policies and Disclosures

In pursuing its investment objectives, the Fund may hold a number of financial instruments. These financial instruments comprise securities and other investments, cash balances, debtors and creditors that arise directly from the Fund's operations, for example, in respect of sales and purchases awaiting settlement, amounts receivable for creations and payable for redemptions and debtors for accrued revenue.

In doing so, the AUTM accepts market price risk and currency risk in relation to the investment portfolio and foreign cash positions.

The Fund may also enter into a range of derivative transactions whose purpose is Efficient Portfolio Management ('EPM') including hedging. In addition, the Fund only executes derivative contracts where both the derivative instrument and the counterparty have been approved by the AUTM.

The risks arising from financial instruments and the AUTM's policies for the monitoring and managing of these risks are stated below in accordance with the Risk Management Policy of the AUTM.

These policies have been consistent for both years through which these financial statements relate.

Market price risk

Market price risk arises mainly from uncertainty about future prices of financial instruments held. It represents the potential loss the Fund might suffer through holding market positions in the face of price movements. This means the value of an investor's holding may go down as well as up and an investor may not recover the amount invested. Investors should consider the degree of exposure of the Fund in the context of all their investments.

The Fund's investment portfolio is exposed to market price fluctuations, which are monitored by the AUTM as per the policies as set out in the Prospectus. The investment guidelines and investment and borrowing powers set out in the trust deed, the Prospectus and in the Financial Conduct Authority's Collective Investment Schemes Sourcebook describe the nature of the market risk to which the Fund will be exposed.

At the balance sheet date, if the price of the investments held by the Fund increased or decreased by 10%, with all other variables held constant, the net assets attributable to Unitholders would increase or decrease by approximately £2,909,046 (2023: £7,801,276).

Notes to the Financial Statements

continued

12. Risk Management Policies and Disclosures (continued)

Currency risk

Although the Fund's capital and income are denominated in sterling, a proportion of the Fund's investments may have currency exposure and, as a result, the income and capital value of the Fund are affected by currency movements.

Currency risk is the risk that the value of the Fund's investments will fluctuate as a result of changes in currency exchange rates. For Funds where a proportion of the net assets of the Fund is denominated in currencies other than sterling, the balance sheet can be affected by movements in exchange rates. The AUTM monitors the currency exposure of the Fund and may seek to manage exposure to currency movements by using forward exchange contracts or by hedging the sterling value of investments that are priced in other currencies.

The table below details the currency risk profile at the balance sheet date.

	31.12.24	31.12.23
Currency	Total £	Total £
•	-	_
Australian dollar	1,757,782	5,082,646
Chinese renminbi	1,056,072	5,631,440
Hong Kong dollar	11,600,795	24,878,988
Indian rupee	2,173,439	1,889,379
Indonesian rupiah	1,381,783	-
New Zealand dollar	331,845	1,133,777
Philippine peso	427,518	-
Pound sterling	798,038	(354,386)
Singapore dollar	1,029,234	2,592,120
South Korean won	681,292	5,558,507
Taiwanese dollar	5,131,972	21,339,002
Thai baht	1,212,022	4,687,938
United States dollar	2,298,332	8,290,268
	29,880,124	80,729,679

At the balance sheet date, if the value of sterling increased or decreased by 10%, with all other variables held constant, then the net assets attributable to Unitholders would increase or decrease by approximately £2,908,209 (2023: £8,108,407).

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk, being the risk that the value of investments will fluctuate as a result of interest rate changes. The majority of the Fund's assets comprise equity shares which neither pay interest nor have a maturity date.

Interest receivable on bank deposits or payable on bank overdraft positions will be affected by fluctuations in interest rates.

A risk limit system is employed to monitor the risks related to the investment types, concentration and diversification of the Funds portfolio.

There is no material interest rate exposure in the Fund (2023: none).

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the issuer of a security will be unable to pay interest and principal in a timely manner. Adhering to investment guidelines and avoiding excessive exposure to one particular issuer can limit credit risk.

Stress testing and scenario analysis is carried out on a regular basis.

There are no net borrowings or unlisted securities and the AUTM considers that the Fund has little exposure to credit risk.

Notes to the Financial Statements

continued

12. Risk Management Policies and Disclosures (continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that a Fund cannot raise sufficient cash to meet its liabilities when due. One of the key factors influencing this will be the ability to sell investments at, or close to, the fair value without a significant loss being realised.

Under normal circumstances, a Fund will remain close to fully invested. However, where circumstances require either because a view of illiquid securities markets or high levels of redemptions in the Fund, the Fund may hold cash and/or more liquid assets. Temporary higher liquidity levels may also arise during the carrying out of a change in asset allocation policy or following a large issue of units.

The AUTM manages the Fund's cash to ensure they can meet their liabilities. In addition, the AUTM monitors market liquidity of all securities, seeking to ensure the Fund maintains sufficient liquidity to meet known and potential redemption activity. The Fund's cash balances are monitored daily by the AUTM and the Investment Manager. All of the Fund's financial liabilities are payable on demand or in less than one year.

Apex Fundrock Limited ('AFL') conducts regular monitoring to ensure the liquidity profile of the Funds investments comply with their underlying obligations, particularly their ability to meet redemption requests.

Stress tests are undertaken, under normal and exceptional liquidity conditions, in order to assess the liquidity risk of Fund.

Counterparty risk

The risk that the counterparty will not deliver the investments for a purchase or the cash for a sale after the Fund has fulfilled its responsibilities which could result in the Fund suffering a loss. The Investment Manager minimises the risk by conducting trades through only the most reputable counterparties.

Derivatives

The Fund may enter into derivative contracts for EPM purposes. The purposes of EPM must be to achieve reduction of risk, the reduction of cost, or the generation of additional income or capital with an acceptably low level of risk and the use of these instruments must not cause the Fund to stray from its investment objectives.

Any EPM transaction must be economically appropriate and the exposure fully covered. The AUTM monitors the use of derivatives to ensure EPM rules are satisfied.

In the opinion of the AUTM there is no sophisticated derivative use within the Fund and accordingly a sensitivity analysis is not presented.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Investments disclosed as at the balance sheet date are at fair value. Current assets and liabilities disclosed in the balance sheet are at amortised cost which is approximate to fair value.

Notes to the Financial Statements

continued

13. Portfolio Transaction Costs

31.12.24

Analysis of purchases Equities	Total purchase cost £ 21,181,817	£ -	Commissions paid % 0.00	£ 22,642	Taxes % 0.11	Purchases before transaction cost £ 21,159,175
Total purchases after commissions and tax	21,181,817					
Analysis of sales	Net sale proceeds		Commissions paid		Taxes	before transaction cost
Equities Funds	£ 75,256,240 449,517	£ - -	% 0.00 0.00	£ 165,725 306	% 0.22 0.07	£ 75,421,965 449,823
Total sales after commissions and tax	75,705,757					
Commission as a % of average net assets Taxes as a % of average net assets	0.00% 0.26%					

31.12.23

Analysis of purchases	Total purchase cost £	£	Commissions paid %	£	Taxes %	Purchases before transaction cost £
Equities	9,833,308	5,357	0.05	5,971	0.06	9,821,980
Corporate actions	43,184	-	0.00	-	0.00	43,184
Total purchases after commissions and tax	9,876,492					
Analysis of sales	Net sale proceeds		Commissions paid		Taxes	before transaction cost
	£	£	. %	£	%	£
Equities	23,379,936	7,663	0.03	32,942	0.14	23,420,541
Total calca often commissions and tax						
Total sales after commissions and tax	23,379,936					

Commissions and taxes as a % of the average net assets form part of the direct transaction costs stated within the comparative tables on pages 12 and 13. The direct transaction costs within the comparative tables may differ due to the effect of dilution levies charged (where applicable).

14. Portfolio Dealing Spread

The average portfolio dealing spread at 31 December 2024 is 0.85% (2023: 0.25%).

Notes to the Financial Statements

continued

15. Post Balance Sheet Events

Apex Fundrock Ltd has appointed Polen Capital UK LLP as the delegated Investment Manager for the Fund with effect from 1 February 2024. For further information please see Significant Information on page 31.

16. Fair Value Disclosure

Valuation technique		31.12.24		
·	Assets £	Liabilities د	Assets	Liabilities د
Level 1 [^]	29,090,457	-	78,012,760	_
Level 2^^	-	_	_	_
Level 3^^^	-	-	_	-
	29,090,457	_	78,012,760	-

[^] Level 1: Unadjusted quoted price in an active market for an identical instrument.

17. Units in Issue

	A Income	l Income	l Accumulation	R Income
Opening number of units	25,352	60,173,195	25,000	147,821
Units issued	_	6,813,540	_	4,151
Units cancelled	_	(46,100,187)	_	(30,767)
Units converted	-	3,573	-	(4,024)
Closing number of units	25,352	20,890,121	25,000	117,181

^{^^} Level 2: Valuation techniques using observable inputs other than quoted prices within Level 1.

^{^^^} Level 3: Valuation techniques using unobservable inputs.

Distribution Tables

for the year ended 31 December 2024

Income Unit Distributions

Unit class	Distribution	Units	Net revenue	Equalisation	Distribution paid/payable 2024	Distribution paid 2023
A Income	First interim	Group 1 Group 2^	0.7091 0.7091	- -	0.7091 0.7091	0.5175 0.5175
	Second interim	Group 1 Group 2^	1.2727 1.2727		1.2727 1.2727	1.9490 1.9490
	Third interim	Group 1 Group 2^	2.1760 2.1760		2.1760 2.1760	2.0022 2.0022
	Final	Group 1 Group 2^	-			0.5140 0.5140
I Income	First interim	Group 1 Group 2	0.7669 0.4610	- 0.3059	0.7669 0.7669	0.5404 0.5404
	Second interim	Group 1 Group 2	1.3637 0.4458	- 0.9179	1.3637 1.3637	2.0912 2.0912
	Third interim	Group 1 Group 2	2.3408 1.2730	- 1.0678	2.3408 2.3408	2.0687 2.0687
	Final	Group 1 Group 2	0.6004 0.3953	- 0.2051	0.6004 0.6004	0.5120 0.5120
R Income	First interim	Group 1 Group 2	0.6816 0.4891	- 0.1925	0.6816 0.6816	0.4895 0.4895
	Second interim	Group 1 Group 2	1.2140 0.2171	- 0.9969	1.2140 1.2140	1.8556 1.8556
	Third interim	Group 1 Group 2	2.1019 0.9002	- 1.2017	2.1019 2.1019	2.0331 2.0331
	Final	Group 1 Group 2	-	-	-	0.3858 0.3858

Distribution Tables

continued

Accumulation Unit Distributions

Unit class	Distribution	Units	Net revenue	Equalisation	Amount reinvested 2024	Amount reinvested 2023
I Accumulation	First interim	Group 1 Group 2^	0.5556 0.5556		0.5556 0.5556	0.3911 0.3911
	Second interim	Group 1 Group 2^	1.0045 1.0045		1.0045 1.0045	1.4678 1.4678
	Third interim	Group 1 Group 2^	1.7398 1.7398		1.7398 1.7398	1.5082 1.5082
	Final	Group 1 Group 2^	-	-	-	0.4460 0.4460

[^]No group 2 units held in the distribution period

 First interim period:
 01.01.24 - 31.03.24

 Second interim period:
 01.04.24 - 30.06.24

 Third interim period:
 01.07.24 - 30.09.24

 Final period:
 01.10.24 - 31.12.24

Group 1: Units purchased prior to a distribution period Group 2: Units purchased during a distribution period

Equalisation

Equalisation applies only to units purchased during the distribution period (Group 2 units). It represents accrued revenue included in the purchase price of the units. After averaging, it is returned with the distribution as a capital repayment. It is not liable to income tax but must be deducted from the cost of the units for capital gains tax purposes.

General Information

Authorised Status

MI Polen Capital Asia Income Fund (the 'Fund') is an Authorised Unit Trust scheme and a UK UCITS scheme operating under chapter 5 of COLL. The Fund qualifies for certification under the UCITS Directive.

The Fund is authorised and regulated in the UK by the Financial Conduct Authority ('FCA') as a UCITS Retail Scheme under the COLL Sourcebook.

The Fund was incorporated in England and Wales on 09 October 2009 under registration number 470343. The Unitholders are not liable for the debts of the Fund.

The Fund does not intend to have an interest in immovable property.

Head Office

Hamilton Centre, Rodney Way, Chelmsford, Essex CM1 3BY

Address for Service

The Head Office is the address in the United Kingdom for service on the Fund of notices or other documents required or authorised to be served on it.

Base Currency

The base currency of the Fund is Pounds Sterling.

Units

The Trust Deed allows the Fund to issue different classes of units in respect of the Fund.

The Fund currently has the following classes of units available for investment:

A Income

I Income

I Accumulation

R Income

I Income USD

I Accumulation USD

Holders of Income units are entitled to be paid the revenue attributable to such units in respect of each annual accounting year in the currency of the relevant unit class.

Holders of Accumulation units are not entitled to be paid the revenue attributable to such units, but that revenue is retained and accumulated for the benefit of Unitholders and is reflected in the price of units.

Valuation Point

The scheme property of the Fund will normally be valued at 12.00 on each dealing day for the purposes of calculating the price at which units in the Fund may be issued, sold, repurchased or redeemed. The property will be valued on the offer basis for the purpose of calculating the creation price of units and the amount of the initial charge, and on the bid basis for the purpose of calculating the cancellation price of units.

For the purpose of the pricing of units, a business day is defined as a day on which the dealing office of the AUTM is open for the buying and selling of units. The AUTM may at any time during a business day carry out an additional valuation of the property of a Fund if the AUTM considers it desirable to do so, with the Trustee's approval.

Buying, Redeeming and Switching of Units

The AUTM will accept orders for the purchase, sale and switching of units on normal business days between 08:30 and 16:30. Instructions to buy or sell units may either be in writing to:

Hamilton Centre, Rodney Way, Chelmsford, Essex CM1 3BY

Or by telephone to: 0345 026 4282

The AUTM has the right to establish facilities for recording telephone calls made or received on this telephone line.

A contract note giving details of the units purchased will be issued no later than the next business day after the business day on which an application to purchase units is received and instrumented by the AUTM. Certificates will not be issued in respect of units. Ownership of units will be evidenced by an entry on the register of Unitholders.

General Information

continued

Pricing Basis

There is a dual price for buying, selling and switching units in a Fund which represents the Net Asset Value of the Fund concerned. The unit price is calculated on a forward pricing basis, that is at the next Valuation Point after the purchase or redemption is deemed to be accepted by the AUTM.

The prices of units are published daily on www.fundrock.com. Neither the Fund nor the AUTM can be held responsible for any errors in the publication of the prices. The units in the Fund will be issued and redeemed on a forward pricing basis which means that the price will not necessarily be the same as the published price.

Other Information

The Trust Deed, Prospectus, Key Investor Information Document and the most recent interim and annual reports may be inspected at the office of the Fund which is also the Head Office of the Fund. Copies may be obtained free of charge upon application. They are also available from the website of the Fund, the details of which are given in the directory of this report.

Unitholders who have complaints about the operation of the Fund should in the first instance contact the AUTM, or, following that, may make their complaint direct to the Financial Ombudsman Service, Exchange Tower, London E14 9SR.

The AUTM changed the name of the Fund, from MI Somerset Asia Income Fund to MI Polen Capital Asia Income Fund on 22 July 2024. The reason for this is to reflect the name of the new Investment Manager.

Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures ('TCFD')

The AUTM is required to publish a public TCFD product report in respect of the Fund. The report is designed to provide investors with transparency into their portfolios' climate-related risks and opportunities according to the recommendations from the TCFD and aims to help investors understand their exposure to these risks and opportunities.

Reports for the Fund is published on www.fundrock.com/mi-funds/ and can be found under Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures ('TCFD') by selecting the relevant Fund Manager and Fund.

Significant Information

Apex Fundrock Limited as the Authorised Unit Trust Manager ('the AUTM') of the Fund wishes to inform investors of a recent announcement by the Investment Manager to the Fund, Somerset Capital Management LLP ('Somerset').

On 7 December 2023, Somerset announced they will be initiating a closure of their business.

Following discussions with a number of parties to secure the best outcome for investors, and subject to the completion of satisfactory detailed due diligence, Apex Fundrock Ltd will appoint Polen Capital UK LLP as the delegated investment manager for the Fund with effect from 1 February 2024. Polen Capital UK LLP is an FCA authorised investment manager and a subsidiary of Polen Capital.

Polen Capital is a global investment management firm with approaching \$50bn in Assets under Management. Polen Capital has long-established emerging market and Asian investment expertise consistent with the investment objective of the Fund.

As part of this appointment, a team of investment managers from Somerset will be joining Polen Capital's investment team based in London and Asia. This will ensure continuity of management of the assets with no change in process or Fund objective. Polen Capital has also committed to undertake the promotion and distribution of the Fund with a view to ensuring their future growth and longevity.

At this stage we wish to inform investors that:

The Fund's portfolio remains highly liquid and the Fund can be traded as normal;

The Fund remains in compliance with the investment objective and policy of the Prospectus and continues to be actively managed;

The AUTM is monitoring the Fund and investor activity closely and shall act in the best interests of investors at all times.

Other Significant Information

The AUTM has assessed implications of current world geopolitical tensions and conflicts. The current crises have and will have a wider impact in terms of market performance.

General Information

continued

AUTM Value Assessment

The AUTM is required to provide an annual statement for the Fund, attesting that in the opinion of the AUTM the services provided to the Fund and any fees chargeable to the scheme property represent value for money, taking into account the following criteria as set out by the Regulator under COLL 6.6.20R:

- Quality of Service
- Performance
- Economies of Scale
- Comparable Services and Market Rates
- Classes of Units

This statement references services provided directly by the AUTM and those services delegated by the AUTM to third parties such as, but not limited to, investment management, trustee services, custody and settlement, audit provision, legal services, printing services, KIID production and maintenance, and other costs as may be set out or allowable in the scheme documentation.

The AUTM Value Assessment is published on www.fundrock.com.

Remuneration of the AUTM

The AUTM is subject to a remuneration policy that meets the requirements of the Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities Directive ('UCITS') as set out in SYSC 19E of the FCA handbook.

The policy is designed to ensure practices for employee remuneration are consistent with, and promote, sound and effective risk management. It does not encourage risk-taking which is inconsistent with the risk profiles, rules or Trust Deed of the funds managed, and does not impair the AUTM's compliance with its duty to act in the best interests of the funds it manages.

The AUTM has reviewed the remuneration policy and its application in the last year which has resulted in no material changes to the policy or irregularities to process.

This disclosure does not include portfolio management activities as these are undertaken by various third party investment managers appointed by the AUTM. The investment manager is required to make separate public disclosure as part of their obligations under the Capital Requirements Directive.

The AUTM is required to disclose the total remuneration it pays to its staff during the financial year of the Fund, split into fixed and variable remuneration, with separate aggregate disclosure for staff whose actions may have a material impact to the risk profile of a fund or the AUTM itself. This includes executives, senior risk and compliance staff and certain senior managers.

31.12.24	Number of Beneficiaries	Fixed	Variable	Total
Total remuneration paid by the AUTM during the year	27	£1,410,915	£376,608	£1,787,523
Remuneration paid to employees of the AUTM who are material risk takers	6	£657,439	£230,239	£887,678

With effect from 25 September 2024, the composition of Directors and Non-Executive Directors of the ACD Board of Apex FundRock Limited changed. The changes are noted on page 1.

Further information is available in the AUTM's Remuneration Policy Statement, which can be obtained from www.fundrock.com or, on request free of charge, by writing to the registered office of the AUTM.

Data Protection

All personal information provided by you and any other information relating to your investment will be treated in confidence by us and will not be disclosed to any third parties outside of the Apex Group, except to our service providers, appropriate authorities or where legally compelled or permitted by law or where your prior consent has been received. We will use your information to open, administer and when appropriate, close your account. We may record and use any information held about you in the course of our relationship with you for these purposes. The Law gives you the right to know what information we hold about you. In addition, the Law sets out rules to make sure that this information is handled properly.

General Information

continued

A copy of our privacy policy and your rights as a data subject can be found on our website at https://www.apexgroup.com/privacy-policy/. Apex Fundrock Ltd is a registered Data Controller. If you have any queries about the use of your personal information, please contact us via e-mail at DPO@apexfs.com or by post to Hamilton Centre, Rodney Way, Chelmsford, Essex, CM1 3BY.

Risk Warning

An investment in an Unit Trust should be regarded as a medium to long-term investment. Investors should be aware that the price of units and the revenue from them can fall as well as rise and investors may not receive back the full amount invested. Past performance is not a guide to future performance. Investments denominated in currencies other than the base currency are subject to fluctuation in exchange rates, which can be favourable or unfavourable.

